
UNITED NATIONS 1139t:h meeting 

TRUSTEESHIP COUNCIL Monday, 5 June 1961, 
at 2.45 p.m. 

Twenty-seventh Session 
OFFICIAL RECORDS 

CONTENTS 

Examination of conditions in the Trust Territory 
of New Guinea: annual report of the Adminis-
tering Authority for the year ended 30 June 
1960 (continued) · 
Questions concerning the Trust Territory and 

replies of the representative and special 
representative of the Administering Author-

Page 

ity. • . . • . . . . • . • . • • . . • . . • . . . . . . . 17 

President: U TIN MAUNG (Burma). 

Present: 

The representatives of the following States: Austra-
lia, Belgium, Bolivia, Burma, China, France, India, 
New Zealand, Paraguay, Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics, United Arab Republic, United Kingdom of Great 
Britain and Northern Ireland, United States of America, 

The representatives of the following specialized 
agencies: International Labour Organisation; Food and 
Agriculture Organization of the United Nations; United 
Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organi-
zation; World Health Organization. 
Examination of conditions in the Trust Territory of New 

Guinea: annual report of the Administering Authority for the 
year ended 30 June 1960 (T/1561, T/L.1010) (continued) 

[Agenda item 4 (~!)] 
At the invitation of the President, Mr. McCarthy, 

special representative of the Administering Authority 
for the Trust Territory of New Guinea, took a place 
at the Council table. 

QUESTIONS CONCERNING THE TRUST TERRITORY 
AND REPLIES OF THE REPRESENTATIVE AND 
SPECIAL REPRESENTATIVE OF THE ADMINIS-
TERING AUTHORITY 

Political advancement 

NEW YORK 

(XV), was available at the Department of Education, 
which supplied it to any interested persons on request. 
Information on the United Nations was continually dis-
seminated, mainly through that Department and the 
schools as well as by other supplementary methods. 
He was not aware of any special measures concerning 
the dissemination of Assembly resolution 1514 (XV); 
copies of the resolution were kept at Port Mores by. 
3. Mr. OBEREMKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics) asked what immediate steps had been taken 
by the Administering Authority with a view to the im-
plementation of operative paragraph 5 of General 
Assembly resolution 1514 (XV). 
4. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) replied 
that vital steps had been taken. One of them was the 
reconstruction of the Legislative Council, to which he 
had already referred; he could describe it in greater 
detail if the Council wished him to do so. The Austra-
lian Government regarded local government as a major 
step towards self-government. It had repeatedly 
pledged its adherence to the goal of self-government 
as defined in the United Nations Charter. 
5. In reply to a further question from the USSR repre-
sentative, he said that the AdministeringAuthoritydid 
not consider the reorganization of the Legislative 
Council as the final step in the implementation of 
General Assembly resolution 1514 (XV). He had al-
ready informed the Trusteeship Council of the plans 
for the next stage, which would be the creation of a· 
common electoral roll to be followed by the election 
of a legislative body by universal suffrage. 
6, Mr. OBEREMKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics) said that in the documents submitted to the 
Council and in the special representative's statement 
there were numerous references to self-government 
as the ultimate goal of the Administering Authority's 
policy for the Trust Territory of New Guinea. In the 
light of the fact that the General Assembly had adopted 
the Declaration on the granting of independence to 
colonial countries and peoples, he would like to know 
whether Australia's policy in the Territory had as 
its aim merely self-government, or independence. 
7. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said that 
the goal was self-determination and self-government. 
At that juncture neither he nor anyone else could say 
what the self-determined wishes of the people would 
ultimately be and what form their self-government 
would take. That was for the people themselves to 
decide. 

1. Mr • .OBEREMKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics) asked the special representative what steps 
had been taken by the Administering Authority to en-
sure the dissemination of General Assembly resolu-
tion 1514 (XV)-the Declaration on the granting of 
independence to colonial countries and peoples-and 
whether Australian officials in the Trust Territory 
had done anything to explain the meaning of that most 
important document to the indigenous inhabitants. He 
also wished to know how many copies of the text of 8• Mr. OBEREMKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
the Declaration had been received from the United publics) recalled that both the special representative's 
Nations Secretariat, how ~any had been distributed opening statement (1137th and 1138th meetings) and 
and to whom. the annual reports submitted by the Administering 

Authority laid stress on the backward state of the in-
2, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said that digenous inhabitants of New Guinea and the absence 
inf~r~atio~ on ~ll United Nations resoluti~ns and of trained ind~genous cadres as the main factor holding 
act1v1ties, mclu~mg Genera1Assemblyresolutwn1514 back the Terntory's political and economicprogress. 

17 T/SR.1139 



18 Trusteeship Council- Twenty-seventh Session 

He asked whether the Administering Authority's pre-
sent policy was consistent with operative paragraph 3 
of General Assembly resolution 1514 (XV), which pro-
vided that inadequacy of political, economic, social or 
educational preparedness should never serve as a 
pretext for delaying independence, 
9. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) replied 
that the Australian Government's present policy in 
Papua and New Guinea was fully consistent with the 
provisions of the United Nations Charter and the Trus-
teeship Agreement. 
10. Mr. OBEREMKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics) remarked that the special representative had 
failed to give a concrete reply to his concrete question 
relating to a provision of General Assembly resolu-
tion 1514 (XV). He would not insist since it was always 
open to him to draw the necessary conclusions, even 
without help from the Administering Authority. 
11, Although, as the Council had just heard, the 
Administering Authority tended to avoid making any 
reference to independence in relation to New Guinea, 
he firmly believed that the Declaration on the granting 
of independence to colonial countries and peoples ap-
plied in equal measure to the Trust Territory of New 
Guinea. Consequently he wished to know whether the 
Administering Authority was considering any concrete 
plans and time limits for the granting of independence 
to the Trust Territory. 
12. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that he might amplify his earlier statements on that 
point by quoting from a speech made in the Common-
wealth Parliament in October 1960 by the Minister 
for Territories, when the amended Papua-New Guinea 
bill had been in the process of becoming law. The 
Minister had said that, without seeking to bind its suc-
cessors as to precise dates, the present Australian 
Government felt that a further review would become 
necessary in perhaps five or six years' time, and that 

·the changing situation would have to be watched closely 
and amendments made when they were needed rather 
than on a date to be determined in advance. 
13. Mr. OBEREMKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics) asked whether, in view of the existence of an 
administrative union between the Trust Territory of 
New Guinea and the colony of Papua, it was the 
Administering Authority• s intention to grant inde-
pendence to the joint Territory of New Guinea-Papua 
simultaneously or whether it had other views on the 
subject. 
14. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) replied 
that, as he had already said in his opening statement, 
the Australian Government pursued common policies 
towards common ends in both New Guinea and Papua. 
It adhered to the literal meaning of the term "self-
determination", namely that it would be for thepeople 
themselves to decide their form of government. When 
the people of the two Territories-or of the joint Terri-
tory-reached the stage of setting up their own form 
of self-government, it would be for them to decide 
whether to set up a joint form of self-government or 
not. He could not forecast what the peoples' decision 
would be. 
15. Mr. OBEREMKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics) asked when the Administering Authority in-
tended to determine by way of a referendum the will 
of the indigenous inhabitants of the Territory on that 
fundamental question relating to their future. 

16. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) replied 
that he could give no dates. The people did not at that 
stage speak with one voice; the Administering Authori-
ty's first task, on which it was still working hard, was 
to make one people out of the various tribes living in 
the Territory. As he had already tried to explain, 
there was as little in common between an indigenous 
inhabitant from the coastal area and one from certain 
parts of the highlands as between the latter and people 
from other continents. 
17. Mr. OBEREMKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics) asked why, in the light of the statement by 
the special representative that it was essential to give 
the indigenous inhabitants an opportunity to express 
their will, they had only eleven seats out of the thirty-
seven in the new Legislative Council, even after the 
reorganization of which the Administering Authority 
had made so much in the Council. The numerical re-
lationship between the indigenous and the non-indige-
nous inhabitants being 1.3 million to a few tens of 
thousands, if might be asked why the Administering 
Authority had not, as a first step, allocated at least 
an absolute majority of seats to the indigenous in-
habitants, let alone the thirty-six seats to which they 
would have been entitled under a fair system of repre-
sentation. He asked when the Administering Authority 
intended to grant fair representation to the indigenous 
inhabitants and when the Legislative Council would 
acquire the right to make decisions whose implemen-
tation would be compulsory in the Territory. 

18, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) ex-
plained that fourteen members of the Legislative 
Council were official members; theywerepeoplefrom 
inside the Administration who were best fitted by their 
experience, employment and attainments to assist the 
workings of the Legislative Council. The majority of 
the remaining members were indigenous because, 
while the indigenous and the non-indigenous inhabitants 
had the same number of elected representatives, the 
former also had two appointed members. 

19, There had been nothing arbitrary about the con-
stitution of the Legislative Council, which had been 
formed only after the closest consultation with the 
indigenous leaders in the Territory, much of it con-
ducted by the Minister for Territories in person. As 
the Minister had told the Commonwealth Parliament 
in October 1960, not one of the indigenous leaders whom 
he had consulted in July 1960 had been in favour of a 
popular vote at that stage. They had had no confidence 
that the European method of voting would yield good 
results and for the time being, therefore, they had 
favoured a system based on local government councils. 
When, as would happen within the foreseeable future, 
the common roll was instituted, the membership of 
the Legislative Council would automatically be de-
termined by the results of the votes cast by the 
electorate. 
20. The Legislative Council already exercised very 
real powers, particularly with reference to the terri-
torial budget, for after the Treasur~r of the Territory 
had worked out his estimates of revenue and expendi-
ture, and after the amount of the Commonwealthgrant 
had been decided by the Commonwealth Parliament, 
the Legislative Council was entirely free to determine 
the way in which that grant would be spent. As the 
elected and appointed representatives were now in the 
majority in the Council, they could overrule the wishes 
of the Government on any particular point. Further-



1139th meeting- 5 June 1961 19 

more, the Administrator of the Territory could not 
bring any bill or measure into operation except through 
the Legislative Council. 

21. Mr. OBEREMKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics) recalled that in the past the Trusteeship 
Council had been told that the Executive Council in 
the Territory had realpowers.Subsequently,however, 
the Administering Authority itself had admitted that 
its functions were purely consultative, Similarly, it 
would seem that his assessment of the powers of the 
new Legislative Council would not coincide with that 
of the special representative, 
22, He asked whether, in the course of the consulta-
tions between the Administering Authority and the in-
digenous inhabitants prior to the reorganization ofthe 
Legislative Council, any of the representatives of the 
indigenous inhabitants had argued against the alloca-
tion of the majority of the seats in the Council to the 
indigenous inhabitants, 

23. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) replied 
that, to the best of his knowledge, no representatives 
of the indigenous people had made such statements. 

24. As for the USSR representative's reference to 
the Executive Council, the latter had had a very real 
power vested in it, for although its functions had been 
to a large extent advisory there had been strong pres-
sure on the Administrator to act in accordance with 
its advice, since otherwise he would have had to ex-
plain and justify his actions to the Minister. 

25, Mr. OBEREMKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics) asked the special representative whether he 
could provide any additional information on the voting 
procedure in the election of the indigenous represen-
tatives to the Legislative Council, with special refer-
ence to the electoral conferences and the choice of 
the electors. 

26, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that all inhabitants who had appeared to be above a 
certain age-which he believed to be eighteen-in the 
electoral group areas had been invited to take part in 
the elections. Although he could not of course guaran-
tee that every qualified individual had voted, he thought 
that a very substantial number had done so. Before 
the election, officers of the Administration had ex-
plained to the people the issues at stake, what had 
been proposed, and the method of election, Any man 
who had been nominated by six people of his group had 
been able to come forward as a candidate, After the 
candidates had come forward the people had been 
asked to line up behind the candidates of their choice, 
An attempt had been made to introduce a system of 
preferential voting; it had been explained to the people 
that if their candidate was clearly out of the running, 
he would be eliminated and they would be asked to line 
up behind the candidates of their second choice. In 
certain areas ·and groups people had followed that 
advice but in others they would not line up behind 
anyone else after they had seen that their own candi-
date had been eliminated. The system he had described 
had been applied in the thirty-three electoral group 
areas in the Territories of Papua and New Guinea. 

27, Mr. OBEREMKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics) asked for particulars concerning the compo-
sition of the Administrator's Council, with special 
reference to the number of indigenous representatives 
on it. 

28, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) replied 
that the Administrator's Council consisted of the Ad-
ministrator himself, three officials chosen on the 
basis of their long experience in the Territory and of 
proved capacity in administration, and three members 
of the Legislative Council, two of whom had to be 
elected members; one of the latter had to be an in-
digenous inhabitant. Mr. John Guise, the indigenous 
member now serving on the Administrator's Council, 
was a native of Papua; he had been selected because 
of his experience in administrative procedure and 
administration generally. 

29, Mr. OBEREMKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Re-
publics) said that the special representative's reply 
had confirmed his initial impression that no repre-
sentative of the indigenous inhabitants of New Guinea 
was serving on the Administrator's Council. 

30. He thanked the special representative for the 
factual information which he had supplied but regretted 
that his replies to certain questions, particularly those 
relating to the implementation of General Assembly 
resolution 1514 (XV) and to the plans and time limits 
for the granting of independence to the Trust Terri-
tory, had been nebulous in the extreme. The reasons 
for that had perhaps to be sought in the Administering 
Authority's policies. 

31, Mr. BINGHAM (United States of America), re-
ferring to the questions asked by the USSR representa-
tive, observed that in UnitedNationsparlancetheword 
"independence" had acquired a somewhat broader 
meaning than it commonly had. When used inconnexion 
with Trust Territories, the word covered not only 
separate nationhood but also freely chosen association 
with another State. As examples he cited the case of 
the Cameroons under British administration, the two 
parts of which had achieved independence by being 
integrated with Nigeria and the Republic of Cam~roun 
respectively, and Alaska and Hawaii, which had chosen 
to become independent by joining the United States, In 
his view, therefore, the special representative, in 
stating that the gohl for New Guinea was self-deter-
mination, was using a synonym for the word "inde-
pendence" as used in United Nations practice. 

32, He asked the special representative whether he 
could give the Council a rough estimateofthe propor-
tion of the population of New Guinea which was to be 
found in communities which were out of touch with 
other parts of the Territory and with the Administra-
tion except through occasional patrols. 

33, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that it would be quite impossible to give any accurate 
estimate. The number of inhabitants of New Guinea 
who were completely out of touch with the modern 
world and had no opportunity of acquiring any know-
ledge of world affairs was certainly many hundreds 
of thousands. 

34, Mr. BINGHAM (United States of America) asked 
how the electoral groups to which the special repre-
sentative had referred had been brought together. 

35, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that the people in or near the towns had been easily 
gathered at a central point. Most of the inhabitants, 
however, had been brought together at a central place 
by word-of-mouth message or by messages passed 
round to their leaders by Administration officers. 



20 Trusteeship Council- Twenty-seventh Session 

36 Mr BINGHAM (United States of America) ob-
se~ved that according to the special representative's 
opening statement the elected delegates represented 
500,000 indigenous inhabitants. He asked whether that 
meant that 500,000 people had been brought to the 
meetings or that they had been represented by groups 
attending the meetings. 
37. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) ex-
plained that the election had been in stages. Of the 
500,000 people in Papua and New Guinea, some 300,000 
had voted by the electoral conference system. The 
council in each area had elected a voting representa-
tive and later, on a given day, the various representa-
tives had been brought together at a central point and 
had been addressed by all the candidatesformember-
ship of the Legislative Council, from whom one had 
been elected. On the basis of six electoral conferences 
averaging about sixty members, those 300,000 people 
would have elected 360 voting representatives. The 
other 200,000 had gone through a similar procedure 
to elect their own voting representatives, who had also 
participated in electing the candidates. 
38, Mr. BINGHAM (United States of America) asked 
what groups in the Territories of Papua and New 
Guinea had been omitted from the figure of 500,000, 

39, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) thought 
that he could best reply to that question by enumerating 
the groups that had been included. They had comprised, 
firstly, all the local government council groups 
throughout the Territory. Secondly, there were the 
areas where local government council surveys were 
in operation, indicating that the people had reached a 
state of advancement at which they wanted local 
government councils, and other areas which might be 
said to be on the verge of being ready to be declared 
local government council areas, In addition, there were 
town groups, i.e., groups of people who, although they 
might belong to local government council areas, had 
been living away from them at the time of the elections. 
The people who had not been included in the electoral 
procedures had therefore been those in the most 
remote areas or in areas which for various reasons 
were not likely to be ready for local government in 
the near future, The so-called restricted areas were 
included in the category of those that did not send 
representatives to the Legislative Council. 
40. Mr. BINGHAM (United States of America) asked 
for some particulars about the 108 candidates for elec-
tion to the .Legislative Council, six of whom had been 
elected, 

41. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) replied 
that it was open to any indigenous man in the Terri-
tory of off en· himself as a candidate if he had six nomi-
nators. The greatest number of candidates had been 
in the Highlands electorate, where some forty had 
been voted upon by the Electoral Conference. The next 
largest number had been in New Britain, where there 
had been about twenty-five candidates. In the other 
electorates there had been smaller groups, The larger 
numbe~ in the Highlands was an indicationofthe frag- . 
mentatwn of groups which still existed in that area, 
where the people thought of themselves as members 
of their particular tribe rather than of some larger 
collectivity. 

42, ~r. BINGHAM (United States of America) said 
that h1s delegation felt that the Administering Authority 
had shown commendable ingenuity in acquainting the 

peoples of the Trust Territory with the processes of 
government in conditions of great difficulty. 
43, He asked if the special representative could give 
some further details with regard to the items con-
sidered and the decisions taken at the Second Confer-
ence of Local Government Councils, held inNovember 
1960. 

44, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Represehtative) replied 
that one of the items considered had been the election 
procedure for local government council nominees to 
the Legislative Council. The Conference had adopted 
a resolution to the effect that anyone who worked for 
the Government must resign before he could become 
a candidate. It had further asked that in sub-districts 
with more than one council a Native Affairs officer 
should be appointed solely for council work. 
45, The Conference had considered certain local 
matters such as council constables• uniforms, the 
establishment of a bulk store and local government 
training centres, advanced courses for councillors 
and visual aids to assist in educating the people in 
local government. As he had already indicated, there 
were now two local government training centres, one 
at Rabaul and a recently established one at Madang. 
46, The Conference had asked that the term of office 
of members of local government councils should be 
extended to three years. That matter was being con-
sidered by the Administration, The question of quarter-
ly meetings of councils in each district was one for 
the councils themselves to settle, 
47, The problems of tax collection from absentee 
council taxpayers had also been discus:;;ed. 
48, Another proposal had been that courts in council 
areas should be held in the council chambers so that 
members could attend and learncourtprocedure. That 
was in fact being done in some areas' and would with-
out doubt be extended, There had been a debate on the 
suggestion that councillors shouid be given minor 
court powers and be able to adjudicate in civil mat-
ters. No resolution had been passed on that subject. 

49. A further proposal had been that prison~rs from 
council areas should serve their terms in their own 
areas so as to be of benefit to the council as a labour 
force, He could not say whether any steps had been 
taken in that connexion, 
50. A resolution had been adopted requesting that 
minor village matters should be dealtwithbythe local 
councils and more important matters, such as the 
breaking of statutory laws, by the Government. The 
subject was being considered by the Administration 
and he could not say what decision would be taken in 
the matter. 
51 The Conference had discussed the provision of 
heipers in the lower grades of schools as a me~s of 
overcoming the shortage of teachers, Hefeltconf1dent 
that the Administration would do its utmost to help in 
that matter. The Conference had also drawn attention 
to the need for Government schools at standards I and 
II. 

52 The Conference had also referred to theneedfor 
improved radio and newspaper news servi~es, The 
Division of Extension Services was developmg su<?h 
media to the utmost of its ability. It was hoped that m 
the comparatively near future an additional radio 
station would be set up at RalJaul, 



1139th meeting - 5 June 1961 21 

53. Another question discussed had been a request 
that schools should teach the basic principles of local 
gov(lrnment. That matter was being considered by the 
Department of Education in relation to its general 
syllabus. 

54. Other items had dealt with the need for the 
officer of the Department of Agriculture, Stock and 
Fisheries to assist the people in economic develop-
ment. That was a point on which there could be no 
disagreement and the Government was giving it close 
attention. 
55. Another request had been that Administration 
departments should provide financial assistance to 
council projects which provided services for the people 
of the council area concerned. A new method of finan-
cing had been adopted which provided increased sub-
sidies to the councils, thus encouraging them to de-
velop environmental sanitation and other projects. A 
scale had been established according to which grants-
in-aid were made by the Government in proportion to 
the vigour with which the councils attacked the problem. 
56. The Conference had requested that the Adminis-
tration should consider making grants-in-aid to low-
income councils. He could not say what application 
the system of grants-in-aid according to a graduated 
scale would have to low-income councils, nor could 
he give the Council details of the Administration's 
consideration of the matter, since it was still pro-
ceeding and was bound up with the whole method of 
financing local government councils. That applied also 
to the next item considered, which had been the need 
for financial aid from the Government for newly es-
tablished councils. 
57. An item concerning the need to arrive at some 
agreement between the Government and councils re-
garding road construction and maintenance was being 
considered by the Administration. 
58. A further item concerned the problem of over-
coming disobedience of young people. The people of 
New Guinea were finding that as the old ways changed 
and tribal disciplines relaxed or disappeared the 
problem of adjustment by younger people was becoming 
more difficult. 
59. The next item was listed as the problem of High-
land-Coastal marriages. Other. social problems con-
sidered had been the behaviour of young women away 
from their villages and the adoption of family names 
in accordance with European custom, 

60. The last item related to the appointment of in-
digenous people to assist the Native Land Commis-
sioners. That subject was being given close consider-
ation by the Administration, which was endeavouring 
through the Native Land Commissioners to determine 
individual rights in land as part of the transition from 
subsistence farming to cash cropping. 

61, He read out a statement made by the Australian 
Minister for Territories, who had stated that con-
ferences of local government councils would in future 
be held annually, mainly for the purpose of encouraging 
interest in the work of local government councils. The 
Minister had sent a message to the Conference ex-
pressing good wishes to all the delegates and the hope 
that the Conference would lead to friendly associations 
among the people and a clear understanding of the 
work to be done in Papua and New Guinea by the local 
government councils. 

62. Mr. BINGHAM (United States of America) asked 
whether English was spoken at the meetings of the 
Conference of Local Government Councils, the Legis-
lative Council and the local government conferences. 
63. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that the problem of language in such meetings was a 
very real and difficult one, For example, some of the 
elected members of the Legislative Council knew no 
English and had only a small knowledge ofMelanesian 
pidgin. In that case the problem was met by a system 
of simultaneous interpretation similar to that used in 
meetings of United Nations bodies. 

64. The problem had created special difficulties dur-
ing the elections for the Legislative Council. At the 
Highlands Electoral Conference, at which he had been 
present, there had been some sixty or seventy voting 
representatives elected by their own people. Many of 
those people did not know each other's languages, nor 
could they understand English or Melanesian pidgin. 
The problem had been overcome by having an official 
interpreter who had been assisted by a number of other 
interpreters sitting in the body of the meeting beside 
people of the different tribal groups. Thus a candidate 
might speak in his own "place talk", which meant the 
language of his own tribe or place; the official inter-
preter, if he could, interpreted the speech, not simul-
taneously but at convenient breaks, into Melanesian 
pidgin and for those who understood neither the original 
language nor Melanesian pidgin the interpreters in the 
body of the meeting interpreted into the various tribal 
languages. The procedure was of course primitive and 
would be improved upon. It had slowed down the pro-
cedure and slowed down understanding. Nevertheless, 
in spite of the difficulties, an extraordinary measure 
of understanding had been developed at the conferences. 

65. Mr. BINGHAM (United States of America) said 
that the steps taken by the Administering Authority to 
open up a number of positions in the Third Division of 
the Public Service to indigenous people were to be 
commended. It seemed clear that one way of increasing 
opportunities for indigenous people was through the 
creation of in-training positions, such as those men-
tioned in part V of the annual report}/ He wondered 
what plans the Administering Authority had for expand-
ing opportunities for in-service training and whether 
the programme might perhaps be extended to higher 
classifications of the Service. 

66, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that the Administration was determined to extend the 
system as rapidly as was possible. He himself had 
recently visited the special school set up at Port 
Moresby for young patrol officers in training and had 
been most impressed by the enthusiasm of the trainees, 
who were receiving the most rigorous and competent 
instruction in order to enable them to advance to the 
complementary positions waiting for them. 

67. U AUNG THANT (Burma) referred to the state-
ment on page 21 of the annual report that co-operation 
had continued between the Territorial Administration 
and the Administration ofNetherlandsNewGuinea- a 
Territory which his Government called West Irian. 

!J Commonwealth of Australia, Report to the General Assembly of 
the United Nations on the Administration of the Territory of New Guinea 
from 1st July, 1959, to 30th June, 1960 (Canberra, A.J. Arthur, Com-
monwealth Government Printer). Transmitted to members of the Trus-
teeship Council by a note of the Secretary-General (T /1561). 



22 Trusteeship CoWlcil-Twenty-seventh Session 

He would like to know the nature and scope of such 
co-operation and the fields in which it had taken place, 

68, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that the reference was to administrative co-operation 
in all the fields in which such co-operation was useful. 
There had, for example, been discussions between the 
respective departments responsible for native affairs 
regarding methods and techniques of administrative 
development, the use of indigenous officers, and any 
problems which might have occurred in that connexion. 
There was also the utilization of administrative es-
tablishments set up by one of the Administrations, such 
as the nautical training school at Hollandia, where a 
number of indigenous people from the Trust Terri-
tory had been trained to a considerable degree of ef-
ficiency in seamanship. There had also been discus-
sions between officers working in the fields of education 
and agriculture. 

69. U AUNG THANT (Burma) noted the statement on 
page 24 of the annual report that a local government 
council was established only when it was clear that 
the people wanted it and were ready for it. He would 
like to know how the Administration ascertained the 
wishes of the people and their readiness for local 
government coWlcils, and what concrete steps the 
Administering Authority had taken in the year Wlder 
review to encourage the growth of the local govern-
ment system. 
70. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that the Administration ascertained the wishes of the 
people by contact between officers of the Department 
of Native Mfairs and the people and their leaders. 

71. The Administration shared the Burmese repre-
sentative's anxiety to extend the local government 
coWlcils. That was proved by the fact that since the 
matter had last been considered by the Trusteeship 
CoWlcil ten new coWlcils had been established, which, 
allowing for the fact that two existing coWlcils had 
coalesced, had resulted in a net increase of nine; 
progress was also being made towards the establish-
ment of other COWlcils. The stimulation of that growth 
depended primarily on the number of officers available 
to Wldertake the work. He drew attention to the figures 
in the various documents on the increase in the Terri-
tory's public services, and in particular to the in-
creases in the Native Mfairs staff and cadets to be 
brought forward as quickly as possible to relieve more 
senior officers for different types of work, As the 
Trusteeship Council knew, the matter had been one 
of high priority for the Administration, The local 
government COWlCils system had received a further 
impetus to its development as a result of the recent 
electoral reforms. Those reforms had led to increased 
political awareness and the people had also been able 
to witness the role played by the coWlcils in providing 
the machinery which had enabled the elections to be 
carried out. 

72, U AUNGTHANT(Burma)askedwhowasresponsi-
ble for drawing up the agenda items for the conferences 
of local government coWlcils such as the recent Confer-
ence which the special representative had described 
earlier. 

73, Mr .. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that continuing emphasis had been placed on the neces-
sity of developing the agenda on the basis of requests 
received by the coWlcils participating in the Confer-
ence. 

74. U AUNG THANT (Burma), recallingthattheTrus-
teeship CoWlcil had drawn the Administering Authori-
ty' s attention to the need for an official and national 
name for the people of the Trust Territory, asked 
whether that matter had been discussed at the Confer-
ence of Local Government Councils. 
75, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) saidhe 
was not aware that the matter had been discussed at 
the Conference; it might be doubted whether the ques-
tion was a proper one for such conferences, which 
should not usurp the functions of the Legislative 
Council. 
76. U AUNG THANT (Burma) expressed theviewthat 
a local government council's conference could usefully 
discuss the matter without usurping the authority of 
the Legislative Council, 

77. In connexion with the Legislative CoWlcil, he 
wondered whether the Governor-General had ever 
made use of the provision, mentioned on page 26 of 
the annual report, Wlder which an official or elected 
member of the CoWlcil could be removed from office 
by the Governor-General. 
78, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that he knew of no case in which that power had been 
exercised. 
79, U AUNG THANT (Burma) recalled that the Trus-
teeship CoWlcil had questioned the appropriateness of 
the arrangement whereby the Christian Missions in 
the Territory were directly represented in the Legis-
lative CoWlcil. He asked whether the provision for 
direct representation had been retained. 

80. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) replied 
that the provision had been modified, the number of 
such representatives having been reduced from three 
to two. 

81, U AUNG THANT (Burma) said that his delegation 
was glad to note that some progressive changes were 
contemplated in the composition of the Legislative 
CoWlcil. The Burmese delegation felt, however, that 
the CoWlcil would not be as effective as it should be 
unless it was based on a broader suffrage and he would 
like to know whether progress in that direction was 
envisaged in the near future. 

82, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) replied 
that it was envisaged that a broader basis of suffrage 
would be rapidly developed, either through the acceler-
ated development of Native Local Government CoWlcils 
or on the basis of a common roll. The question of the 
common roll would be a matter for consideration by 
the CoWlcil itself after its present three-year session 
had been completed, In that connexion, the Minister 
for Territories had stated that the wishes of the in-
digenous people, as expressed through their leaders, 
favoured the development of a popular vote through 
an extension of the local government coWlcil z.na-
chinery. The Minister had pointed out that the system 
of elections known in British coWltries had been 
evolved over ten centuries andthatotherpeople should 
not be expected to reach the same point in ten years. 
In other commWlities, living Wlder other conditions, 
democracy might equally well be served by indirect 
elections following well-tried traditional methods, 

83, His delegation was in full agreement with the 
Burmese representative regarding the merits of uni-
versal franchise, but the Australian Government did 



1139th meeting - 5 June 1961 23 

not wish to impose particular methods of election on 
a people if they preferred to evolve a method of their 
own. Electoral systems varied even among advanced 
nations. 
84. U AUNG THANT (Burma) agreed that a fully dem-
ocratic state could not be created overnight; at the 
same time, the Trusteeship Council would naturally 
like to see movement towards that goal. 

85. With reference to the statement on page 27 of 
the annual report that the Administrator could, if he 
thought fit, act in opposition to the majority advice of 
the Executive Council, he wondered whether there had 
been any instance of such action, 

86. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that he was not aware of any cases in which the 
Administrator had acted against the advice of the 
Executive Council; in such cases, which must have 
been few, the Administrator would have been obliged 
to submit full facts on the matter to the Australian 
Government to justify his actions. 

87. U AUNG THANT (Burma) recalled that the Trus-
teeship Council had recommended that the Headquar-
ters of the Administration of the Trust Territory 
should be in the Territory itself and not in Papua. 
From the opening statement of the special repre-
sentative, he had received the impression that the 
Administration was not taking any steps in that direc-
tion. 

88. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) ex-
plained that there were no plans for movingthe meet-
ing-place of the Legislative Council from its present 
position in Port Moresby, for the reasons he had al-
ready given and because the Council functioned ef-
ficiently from its present site. 

89. U AUNG THANT (Burma) asked whether of the 
some 700 languages spoken in the Territory any one 
or two were more predominantly spoken and under-
stood, 

90. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) replied 
that the number of languages spoken was still uncertain 
but the figure of 700 hadbeengivenhim by a linguistic 
scholar at the Australian National University who was 
probably the greatest expert in the field at the present 
time. He had said that some of the languages were 
spoken by groups of people numbering as few as two 
thousand, while there were languages in the Highlands 
which were spoken by as many as 100,000 to 130,000 
people, or were understood by that number of people 
because their own tribal language was basically the 
same language with minor variations. It might be 
that the Administration could standardize its work on 
the basis of a smaller number of languages if it was 
found that many people in the smaller linguistic 
groups could also speak the language of a larger 
adjacent group. In that way, many of the languages 
might disappear as the people adopted languages of 
larger groups. 

91, Mr. KIANG (China) expressed his pleasure at 
seeing a representative from New Guinea present as 
a member of the Australian delegation; he recalled 
that the United Nations Visiting Mission to the Trust 
Territories of Nauru, New Guinea and the Pacific 
Islands, 1959, had asked the Administering Authority 
whether it would be ready to include a representative 
from the Territory in its future delegation. 

92, He was glad to hear, that there was an Australian 
linguist engaged in research on the languages spoken 
in the Territory but he would like to know the real 
purpose of the research. He wondered whether the 
effort expended in such a study should not be diverted 
to the promotion of the use of English, in place of 
Melanesian pidgin. He would like to know what pro-
gress had been made in the elimination of pidgin. 

93. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) pointed 
out that the research in question was not being carried 
out by the Government but by a reader in linguistics 
at the Australian National University as part of the 
University's own research programme; the research 
received the full encouragement of the New Guinea 
Administration and the Department of Territories, 
but there was no diversion of resources which might 
be gainfully employed otherw~se. The Australian 
Government was not encouraging the use of pidgin; its 
policy was no spread the use of English as a lingua 
franca by every possible means. 
94. Mr. KIANG (China) asked which of the six elected 
representatives in the Legislative Council had been 
re-elected at the last election and whichofthose were 
indigenous and which non-indigenous. 
95. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that, of the indigenous members, none had previously 
been elected. Of the non-indigenous members, three 
had previously been members of the Council. 
96, Mr. KIANG (China) asked whether there were 
any regulations governing the election of representa-
tives to the Legislative Council by the electoral groups. 
97. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said he 
thought that the operation of the electoral groups was 
governed by regulation No. 53 of 1960, which appeared 
in the Legislative Council Ordinance 1951-1960. He 
would prefer to answer the question more fully the 
following day. 

98. Mr. KIANG (Qhina) wished to know how the elec-
toral groups were distributed by districts, 

99. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that, in the coastal area, there were electoral groups 
from Madang, Lae and some isolated areas in the 
Sepik and Morobe districts; in the Highlands, from 
the Siwai, Mount Hagen and Waiye areas; in New 
Britain, from Rabaul Township and the Kandrian sub-
districts; in the New Guinea islands, from the Manus 
District and Lorengau; in New Ireland, from 'Kavieng 
and the eastern end of the island; and from the Bougain-
ville District. 

100. Mr. KIANG (China) asked the special representa-
tive whether he considered the Trusteeship Council's 
recommendation that the Administering Authority 
should avail itself of United Nations trainingfacilities 
for the purpose of preparing indigenous personnel for 
higher administrative posts in the public service to 
be a practical one. 

101. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) replied 
that he did not regard the recommendation as practical 
at the present time. The main problem in New Guinea 
was not that of training indigenous personnel but of 
bringing indigenous persons up to the level where 
they could be trained. The Administration of Papua 
and New Guinea provided administrative training 
through such organizations as the Public Service 
Institute and the School of Pacific Administration and 



24 Trusteeship Council-- Twenty-seventh Session 

training was also provided in various forms in Aus-
tralia, Those facilities were best able to meet the 
Administration's needs at the present time. 
102, Mr. KIANG (China) said that he presumed, in 
that case, that the Administration would not wish to 
make use of the training facilities available in indi-
vidual States Members of the United Nations, 
103, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that that was correct. 
104. Mr. KIANG (China), recalling the special repre-
sentative's observation in his opening statement that 
the Legislative Council provided the means whereby 
the people of New Guinea could shape their own future 
until they reached the goal of self-government, asked 
how long he though it would take them to reach that 
goal. 
105. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that he would not care to estimate the time that would 
be required for that purpose. 
106. Mr. KIANG (China) noted that 1963 was cited in 
the annual report and in the special representative's 
ope.ning stat~ment as the target date for bringing the 
entire Terntory under Administration control. He 
asked whether control would be established in new 
areas at the expense of economic development and 
sound administration in the areas already under 
control. 

107, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that, although the diversion of men and resources to 
~ew areas tended to cause some lessening of effort 
m the. mo~e advanced areas, the Administration sought 
to mamtam a proper balance. Since the personnel and 
funds ava~lable for the Territory had been rising 
ann~all.y, 1t _was becoming increasingly possible to 
mamtam satisfactory standards in the advanced areas 
at the same time that new areas were brought under 

Litho in U.N. 

control. The Administration had had that situation in 
mind in setting the 1963 target date, 
108, Mr. KIANG (China) asked whether the review of 
the structure and functions oftheDepartmentofNative 
Affairs had been completed, 
109, Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that the review had been completed and that it had 
been decided that at the present time, instead of 
abolishing the Department, it would be best to redis-
tribute its functions to some extent within the Adminis-
tration as a whole. The Department's labour division, 
for example, had been made a separate department. 
In addition, the functions of the Department of Civil 
Affairs had been redistributed among other bodies and 
a Department of Trade and Industry had been created, 

110, Mr. KIANG (China) asked whether the adminis-
trative review had resulted in any other important 
findings. 
111. Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that the police force was being made a separate 
department and was to be transformed into a separate 
statutory body outside the prov;isions of the Public 
Service Ordinance, since it had been found in the Aus-
tralian States that it was not in the best interests of 
efficiency for a police force to be subject to Public 
Service legislation, The review had also produced 
proposals for strengthening collaboration between the 
various departments and for using extension services 
as a means of increasing contacts with the indigenous 
inhabitants. 
112, In reply to a further question from Mr. KIANG 
(China), Mr. McCARTHY (Special Representative) said 
that the District Officers for Native Affairs and the 
District Commissioners still exercised separate 
powers. 

The meeting rose at 6 p.m. 

19586-0ctober 1961-2,250 


